

# Developing Dynamic Applications for Database Monitoring

SL1 version 8.1.0

## Table of Contents

Introduction to Database Dynamic Applications	. 3
Prerequisites	. 4
What is a Database Dynamic Application?	. 4
How Do I Allow SL1 to Access the Database?	. 5
What Can I Monitor with a Database Dynamic Application?	. 5
Can I Create My Own Database Dynamic Applications?	. 5
Elements of a Dynamic Application for a Database	. 6
Defining Collection Objects	. 7
Creating a Dynamic Application	. 8
Creating Collection Objects for a Database Dynamic Application	. 8
Examples of Collection Objects	. 9
Example of a Database Performance Dynamic Application	11
Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	.13
Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application	14
Defining the Collection Objects	.15
Defining the Presentation Objects	.20
Defining the Threshold Objects	24
Defining the Alerts	26
Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application	31
Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device	.32
Viewing Reports for the Dynamic Application	34
Viewing Alerts for the Dynamic Application	35
Changing the Threshold for a Subscriber Device	.36
Example of a Dynamic Application of Type "Database Configuration"	.38
Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	.39
Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application	40
Defining the Collection Objects	.42
Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application	.44
Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device	.45
Viewing the Configuration Report for the Dynamic Application	.46
Example of a Dynamic Application with an Identity-Based Relationship	.48
Building Dynamic Applications with an Identity-Based Relationship	49
Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	.49
Defining the Collection Objects	.51
Creating the Dynamic Application that Creates the Relationship	.53
Aligning the Dynamic Applications	.54
Viewing Dynamic Application Relationships	.55

## Chapter

## Introduction to Database Dynamic Applications

#### Overview

This chapter defines Database Dynamic Applications and explains what you can monitor with Database Dynamic Applications.

Use the following menu options to navigate the SL1 user interface:

- To view a pop-out list of menu options, click the menu icon (三).

This chapter covers the following topics:

Prerequisites	4
What is a Database Dynamic Application?	4
How Do I Allow SL1 to Access the Database?	5
What Can I Monitor with a Database Dynamic Application?	5
Can I Create My Own Database Dynamic Applications?	5
Elements of a Dynamic Application for a Database	6

#### Prerequisites

This manual does not describe elements of Dynamic Application development that are common to all Dynamic Application types. Before reading this manual, you should be familiar with the common elements and concepts of Dynamic Applications. For details on the common elements of Dynamic Applications, see the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

You should be familiar with the query language used by your database before developing a database Dynamic Application. You must also be familiar with the database schema and the data you want to monitor before developing a database Dynamic Application. For help with these tasks, see your database administrator.

#### What is a Database Dynamic Application?

Dynamic Applications come in two broad categories, called **archetypes**:

- Dynamic Applications of archetype Performance. These Dynamic Applications retrieve trendable (that is, data that can be graphed) performance data from devices or applications. Only this archetype includes the [Presentations] tab for defining custom reports. After data has been collected, these reports can be displayed in the Device Management > Performance tab.
- Dynamic Applications of archetype Configuration. These Dynamic Applications retrieve configuration data from devices or applications. Data from this archetype can be automatically linked to fields in asset records and can also be displayed in Hardware Profile reports and the Software Found page. SL1 can automatically monitor one or more data points from this archetype for changes. If the value of the data point changes, SL1 can automatically trigger an event.

NOTE: SL1 also includes Dynamic Applications of archetype Journal. The Journal archetype is available only when using the Snippet protocol. These Dynamic Applications use custom-written Python code to retrieve data from devices or applications. SL1 will display the collected data in log format. Each log entry can contain multiple collected values and can change over time.

These archetypes contain the following types of Dynamic Applications for databases:

- **Database Configuration**. The Dynamic Application retrieves **configuration** data from a database on a managed device. The Dynamic Application includes SQL queries to retrieve data. SL1 executes these queries against a database on each subscriber device. SL1 displays the returned data in configuration tables for each subscriber devices.
- **Database Performance**. The Dynamic Application retrieves **trendable performance** data from a database on a managed device. The Dynamic Application includes SQL queries to retrieve data. SL1 executes these queries against a database on each subscriber device. SL1 displays the returned data in graphs in the **[Performance]** tab for each subscriber device.

SL1 also includes Dynamic Applications for the following protocols: SNMP, SOAP, Snippet (Python), WMI, XML, and XSLT. For an overview of all types of Dynamic Applications see the **Dynamic Application Development** manual . For details on each protocol, see the manual on that specific protocol (for example, for SNMP, see the **Dynamic Application Development - SNMP** manual).

#### How Do I Allow SL1 to Access the Database?

For SL1 to successfully send queries to an external database:

- SL1 must have permission to connect to the device that is hosting the database. You might have to perform some configuration tasks on the device or on your firewalls to allow SL1 access.
- If you want SL1 to query an external database, you must configure the appropriate security parameters on the database to give SL1 access to the database.
- SL1 must use a valid database username and database password to query the database. To meet this requirement, SL1 uses *credentials*.

**Credentials** are access profiles (username and password, plus additional information) for external systems. These profiles allow SL1 to access external systems while maintaining the security of the access accounts. Users who need SL1 to retrieve data from these external systems see only the name of the credential, not the username, password, and network information.

For more details on credentials, see the manual Discovery and Credentials.

#### What Can I Monitor with a Database Dynamic Application?

With a Database Dynamic Application, you can monitor any value that can be retrieved with a database query.

However, many Database Dynamic Applications of type Performance query only performance data, like number of reads, number of writes, write time, read time, processor usage, memory usage, number of threads, and buffer cache hits.

Many Database Dynamic Applications of type Configuration query only configuration data, like buffer size, heap size, locks, and number of active users.

#### Can I Create My Own Database Dynamic Applications?

You can create your own Dynamic Applications to suit your environment and your needs. To create your own Dynamic Applications, you must:

- Determine the data you want to retrieve and monitor.
- Determine the queries you will use to retrieve that data. To write these queries, you must be familiar with the query syntax that is supported by your database, and you must be familiar with the location of data in your database.

#### Elements of a Dynamic Application for a Database

Database Dynamic Applications have the following elements in common with other Dynamic Application types:

- Archetypes. Defines what type of data is being collected and how it will be displayed in SL1. Database Dynamic Applications can be either the *Performance* or *Configuration* archetypes.
- Properties. Allows for version control, release notes, collection, and retention settings.
- **Collection Objects**. Define the individual data-points that will be retrieved by the Dynamic Application. These data points are called collection objects. Collection objects define what type of data is being collected (gauge, counter, etc.) and how it is grouped. Collection objects for database Dynamic Applications differ from collection objects in other types of Dynamic Applications. For details on collection objects for database Dynamic Applications, see the section on **Collection Objects**.
- **Presentations**. For Performance Dynamic Applications, defines how collected values will be displayed by SL1.
- *Thresholds*. Can be used to define a default threshold value that can be included in alerts. The threshold also appears in the **Device Threshold** page for each device the Dynamic Application is aligned with.
- Alerts. Alerts allow you to trigger an event based on the values retrieved by the Dynamic Application. If the collected data meets the conditions defined in the alert, the alert can insert a message into device logs and trigger events.
- Credentials. Access profiles that define how Dynamic Applications will authenticate on each aligned device and application. Database Dynamic Applications use database credentials. There are multiple ways to align a credential with a Dynamic Application (during discovery, as secondary credentials for a device, or manually in the Collections page for a device). For details on how SL1 aligns credentials during discovery and how to manually edit and add new credentials to a device, see the manual Discovery and Credentials.
- **Relationships**. Dynamic Applications can be configured to automatically create relationships between devices. For example, the Dynamic Applications in the VMware vSphere and NetApp PowerPacks are configured to create relationships between VMware Datastore component devices and their associated NetApp Volume component devices. Relationships created by Dynamic Applications are used and visualized by the platform in the same manner as relationships created by topology collection, Dynamic Component Mapping, and manually in the user interface. The settings for configuring the creation of relationships in a configuration Database Dynamic Application are the same as the relationship settings for other Dynamic Application protocols.

## Chapter

# 2

## **Defining Collection Objects**

#### Overview

A **collection object** is an individual data-point that will be collected by a Dynamic Application. Most Dynamic Applications collect multiple data-points. These data-points are referred to as **objects**.

For Database Dynamic Applications, each collection object is populated with the results of a query.

For example, suppose you want to monitor the write-speed of the database every 15 minutes. You could define your Dynamic Application to execute every 15 minutes. You could define a collection object called "write\_speed". You could then define a query that retrieves the value for "write speed" (usually stored in one of the administrative tables). You could align this query with the "write\_speed" object and populate the object.

**NOTE**: This chapter describes only the fields specific to collection objects for a database Dynamic Application. All the remaining fields, for both performance and configuration archetypes, are described in detail in the **Dynamic Application Development** manual .

Use the following menu options to navigate the SL1 user interface:

- To view a pop-out list of menu options, click the menu icon (三).
- To view a page containing all of the menu options, click the Advanced menu icon (

This chapter covers the following topics:

Creating a Dynamic Application	8
Creating Collection Objects for a Database Dynamic Application	8
Examples of Collection Objects	9

#### Creating a Dynamic Application

To create a Dynamic Application, you must:

- 1. Define the general properties of the Dynamic Application.
- 2. Define the collection objects you want to monitor.
- 3. Optionally, define thresholds for the values of collection objects.
- 4. Optionally, define graphs of the values of collection objects.
- 5. Optionally, define alerts that are triggered by the values of collection objects.

All these steps, except for defining collection objects, are the same for all types of Dynamic Applications. The steps that are the same for all types of Dynamic Applications are described in the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

The step that is specific to database Dynamic Applications, defining collection objects, is described in this section.

# Creating Collection Objects for a Database Dynamic Application

This section describes how to define a collection object for a Dynamic Application of type Database Performance or Database Configuration. This section describes only the fields specific to a database Dynamic Application. All the remaining fields, for both performance and configuration archetypes, are described in detail in the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. If the Dynamic Application already exists, in the Dynamic Applications Manager page, find the Dynamic Application for which you want to define a new object. Select its wrench icon (*P*).
- 3. To create a new Dynamic Application, follow the steps in the manual Dynamic Application Development. When defining a database Dynamic Application, most of the steps are the same for all types of Dynamic Applications. Only one step, creating collection objects, is unique to database Dynamic Applications. That unique step is described in this section.
- 4. Select the [Collections] tab.
- 5. In the **Collection Objects** page, enter a value in each field in the top pane. This section describes only the fields specific to a database Dynamic Application. All the remaining fields are described in detail in the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

Close P	roperties <u>Collections</u>	Presentations	i <u>I</u> hr	esholds	Alerts	Subscribers			
Dynamic Applications [249	Collection Objects							Guide R	leset
Object Name	Transactions					Description			
SQL Query	<pre>select <u>cntr_</u>value from &amp; counter_name = 'Transact instance_name = '_Total'</pre>	vaperinfo wher lions/sec' and	e ,;;			·			
Class Type	[1] Performance Counter					Formula			
Group Number	[No Group]	•	Index: 📃			l'officia			
Trended Column	cntr_value			1					
Enable Deviation Alerting:	max weeks data: 0 min v	weeks data 0							
				Save			Disable	Object Maintenance	
Collection Object Regis	strv								=
	Object Name	Class Type	Class ID		SQL Query		Group ID	Edit Date	2
1. PDiscovery		Discovery Performance Gauge	100 SEL	ECT count(*) \	alue FROM master_	events.events_active;	0_2214	2012-05-21 20:57:3	9
					[Select .	Action]		•	Go

• **SQL Query**. Enter a valid database query in this field. The value retrieved by this query will be stored in the collection object.

**NOTE**: Be sure the query has been tested on the intended database before you include it in a Dynamic Application. Also, be sure the query can be resolved within the polling frequency of the Dynamic Application.

NOTE: If a single query will return multiple columns, and you want to view the output from multiple columns and view graphs for multiple columns, you must **create a collection object for each returned column**. This means that for each collection object, you must enter the same query and define a different **Object Name**, **Class Type**, and a different **Trended Column** for each returned column.

- **Trended Column**. If a query returns multiple columns, enter the name of the column that you want to see graphed in Device Management > Performance. If a query returns multiple columns and this field is left blank for each collection object, by default only the first returned column will be graphed in the Device Management > Performance page.
- 6. Select the [Save] button to save the new collection object.
- 7. Repeat these steps for each collection object you want to define for the Dynamic Application.

### **Examples of Collection Objects**

• For MySQL, we could enter one of the following queries into the SQL Query field:

• To retrieve the version number of a MySQL database:

show global variables like 'version'

• To retrieve the number of active events on the SL1 system:

SELECT count( \* ) Value FROM master\_events.events\_active;

- For MS SQL, we could enter one of the following queries into the SQL Query field:
  - To retrieve the name of the MS SQL database:

select name from sys.databases

• To retrieve the number of logins to the database:

select cntr\_value from sysperfinfo where counter\_name='Logins/sec'

- For Oracle, we could enter one of the following queries into the SQL Query field:
  - To retrieve the number of times a process was delayed while waiting to access the rollback segment

SELECT (Sum(waits) / Sum(gets)) \* 100 FROM v\$rollstat

• To retrieve the hit ratio of requests to the block buffer (versus "hits" to the physical disk):

```
SELECT (1 - (phys.value / (db.value + cons.value))) * 100 FROM v$sysstat
phys,v$sysstat db,v$sysstat cons WHERE phys.name = 'physical reads' AND db.name
= 'db block gets' AND cons.name = 'consistent gets'
```

## Example

## Example of a Database Performance Dynamic Application

#### Overview

In this chapter, we will walk through a Dynamic Application that monitors the performance of a MySQL database.

The **MySQL DB Performance** Dynamic Application makes multiple queries to an internal table in MySQL. This internal table stores status information about the MySQL server, such as number of connections, information about index scans, information about pages in the buffer pool, reads and writes to key blocks, number of open files, information on the query cache, number of slow queries, information about table locks, and information about threads.

The **MySQL DB Performance** Dynamic Application includes presentation objects, threshold objects, and alert definitions that allow you to monitor the status of a MySQL server.

In this chapter, we have aligned the Dynamic Application with the Database Server. The Database Server uses a MySQL database.

**NOTE**: The *MySQL DB Performance* Dynamic Application includes multiple Collection Objects, Presentation Objects, Threshold Objects, and Alerts. This chapter will walk you though only two of each type of object.

Use the following menu options to navigate the SL1 user interface:

- To view a pop-out list of menu options, click the menu icon (三).
- To view a page containing all of the menu options, click the Advanced menu icon ( 🛄 ).

This chapter covers the following topics:

Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	13
Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application	14
Defining the Collection Objects	15
Defining the Presentation Objects	20
Defining the Threshold Objects	24
Defining the Alerts	26
Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application	31
Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device	32
Viewing Reports for the Dynamic Application	
Viewing Alerts for the Dynamic Application	35
Changing the Threshold for a Subscriber Device	

### Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application

To create the container for this Dynamic Application and define its general properties, perform the following:

NOTE: For details on each field and its possible options, see the manual *Dynamic Application Development*.

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Click the [Actions] button, and then select Create New Dynamic Application. The Dynamic Applications Create New Application page appears.

Close Create			
Dynamic Applications   Create New Application			Guide Reset
Application Name Application Type [SNMP Performance] Caching No caching Device Dashboard [None] V	Version Number [Version 1.0] V Operational State [Enabled] V Poll Frequency [Every 15 Minutes] V	Abandon Collection [[Default]  Context Null Row Option - values Null Column Option - values velocities velocit	Disable Rollup of Data
Description			at
Release Notes & Change Log	- Fort	<ul> <li>MA Sa III </li> <li>Sze - Tar Sar III III III IIII IIII IIII IIII I</li></ul>	

- 3. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Application Name. Enter MySQL:DBPerformance.
  - Application Type. The protocol SL1 will use and the type of data that will be collected. Select Database Performance.
  - Version Number. Accept the default value. You can customize this value and increment it according to your change-management policies.

- **Operational State**. Specifies whether SL1 will collect data from devices using this Dynamic Application. This field also specifies whether SL1 will automatically align this Dynamic Application to devices during discovery, re-discovery, and nightly auto-discovery. Select *Enabled*.
- **Poll Frequency**. Frequency at which SL1 will poll devices that use this Dynamic Application. Select "Every 5 Minutes", so we can quickly view retrieved data in this example.
- Abandon Collection. Accept the default value. Specifies how many collection objects must be unavailable before the Dynamic Application should stop trying to collect data and wait until the next scheduled collection session. *Default* specifies a threshold of two collection objects.

**NOTE**: For all objects except those retrieved from a database, the timeout limit is specified in the credential. For database objects, the timeout limit is specified internally by SL1.

- Context. Leave this field blank.
- 4. Click the [Save] button to save the Dynamic Application.

#### Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application

A **discovery object** is a type of collection object. If you want SL1 to automatically align devices with a Dynamic Application during discovery, you must include a discovery object in that Dynamic Application.

NOTE: For more details on discovery objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

To create a discovery object for the Dynamic Application **MySQL:DBPerformance**, we will write a query that will return a value only if MySQL is running on a device.

To create the discovery object:

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Click the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL:DBPerformance**.
- 3. Click the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page (System > Manage > Applications > Collections) appears.
- 4. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Object Name. Enter Discovery Object.
  - **SQL Query**. This field specifies the query that SL1 will use to collect the discovery object. We will query a value that indicates that a MySQL database exists, regardless of the status of the data in the database. Enter the following query:

```
show global status like 'Connections'
```

• This query searches an internal table that stores information about all connections to the MySQL database (show global status).

- The query retrieves the value of the status variable "Connections" (like 'Connections').
- The variable "Connections" contains the number of connection attempts (successful or not) to the MySQL server. The value can be zero ("0") or greater.
- This query will return a value even if no connections have been made previously.
- Class Type. Select [100] Discovery.
- 5. Click the **[Save]** button to save the collection object. Because this collection object has been defined with a *Class Type* of [100] *Discovery*, the user interface displays additional fields that are specific to discovery objects.

Close <u>P</u> roperties	<u>C</u> ollections	Presentati <u>o</u> ns	<u>T</u> hresholds	<u>A</u> lerts	Subscribers			
Dynamic Applications [541]   Collecti	on Objects   Object Add	led [ 5499 ]					Guide Re	eset
Object Name	Discovery Object							
	show global stats	like 'connectio	ns'					
SQL Query	·							
01 T	[100 D:]		.::					
Class Type	[TUU Discovery]							
labula	r							
Alignment Condition	[Align if OID is present]		•					
Validity Check	Where:	is > Result	Validity Check is or clients may res	an optional setting that is spond to a query, even i	s used to validate if a disco f the related feature or serv	ivery object is reliably i ice is not operational.	eporting data. Some	agents
		s	Save Sav	e As		Disable Obje	ct Maintenance	
Collection Object Registry								
	Object Name		Class Cl	ass S	QL Query	Group ID	Edit Date	
1. <i>P</i> Discovery			Discovery 1	00 show global st	ats like 'connections'	' - o_5499 20'	12-06-04 13:18:40	
				[Selec	ct Action]			Go

- 6. Enter values in the following fields:
  - Alignment Condition. Specifies how this discovery object should be evaluated. Select Align if OID is present. This choice tells SL1 to automatically align the Dynamic Application with each device that returns a value for the query in the SQL Query field.
  - Validity Check. Leave blank.

#### Defining the Collection Objects

The **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application on the ScienceLogic Customer Portal includes 27 Collection Objects. This section will walk you through the creation of only two collection objects.

#### NOTE: For more details on collection objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

In this section, we will create the following collection objects:

- *Key\_reads*. This collection object monitors the MySQL status variable key\_reads. This status variable specifies the number of times MySQL had to access the file system (instead of the key cache) to fetch database indexes. If key\_reads is large, then the key buffer is probably too small.
- **Key\_read\_requests**. This collection object monitors the MySQL status variable key\_read\_requests. This status variable specifies the total number of requests to read a key block from the cache.

If MySQL must fetch database indexes from the filesystem, queries to that database will be slower than usual. If your MySQL server must frequently fetch database indexes from the filesystem, you should increase the size of the key buffer.

To create these two collection objects, perform the following:

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Click the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL:DBPerformance**.
- 3. Click the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page (System > Manage > Applications > Collections) appears.

Close Pr	operties <u>C</u> ollections Presentat	i <u>o</u> ns <u>T</u> hre	sholds	<u>A</u> lerts	Subscribers			
Dynamic Applications [541]	Collection Objects   Object Added [ 5500	1					Guide R	eset
Object Name	Key_reads				Description	ı		
	show global status like 'Key_reads'							
SQL Query								
		.::						.:
Class Type	[1 Performance Counter]				Formula			
Group Number	[No Group]	✓ Index: □						
Trended Column	Value							
Enable Deviation Alerting:	max weeks data: min weeks data:	]						.::
		Save	Save A	s		Disable (	Object Maintenance	
Collection Object Regis	try							
	Object Name	Class Type	Class	s	QL Query	Group ID	Edit Date	
1. PDiscovery		Discovery	100	show global stat	ts like 'connections'	o_5499	2012-06-04 13:18:40	0
2. <i>P</i> Key_reads		Performance	Counter 1	show global st	tatus like 'Key_reads'	' o_5500	2012-06-04 13:23:17	
				[Selec	t Action]			Go

- 4. First, we will define the **Key\_reads** collection object. This collection object monitors the MySQL status variable key\_reads. This status variable specifies the number of times MySQL had to access the file system (instead of the key cache) to fetch database indexes.
- 5. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Object Name. Enter Key\_reads.
  - SQL Query. Enter the following:

show global status like 'Key\_reads'

- This query searches an internal table that stores information about the MySQL server (show global status).
- The query retrieves the value of the status variable "Key reads" (like 'Key\_reads').
- The variable "Key\_reads" contains the number of times MySQL had to access the file system (instead of the key cache) to fetch database indexes.
- Class Type. Select 1 Performance Counter.
- Group Number. Select No Group, and leave the second drop-down as Standard.
- **Trended Column**. Enter Value. The query returns two columns: Variable\_name, which contains the name of the variable (Key\_reads) and Value, which contains the value of the variable. We are interested only in the value in the Value column. We want SL1 to graph the value from the Value column.
- Enable Deviation Alerting. Do not select these checkboxes.
- **Description**. Leave blank.
- Formula. Leave blank.
- 6. Click the [Save] button to save the new collection object.
- 7. Next, we will define the **Key\_read\_requests** collection objects. This collection object monitors the MySQL status variable key\_read\_requests. This status variable specifies the total number of requests to read a key block from the cache.

Close P	roperties <u>C</u> ollections P	resentati <u>o</u> ns <u>T</u> hre	eshol	ds <u>A</u> lerts Subscribers	
Dynamic Applications [541	Collection Objects   Object Adde	ed [ 5501 ]			Guide Reset
Object Name	Key_read_requests			Descripti	on
	show global status like 'Key	read_requests'			
SQL Query					
		.::			.::
Class Type	[1 Performance Counter]		-		
Group Number	[No Group]	_ Index:		Formula	<u> </u>
	[no croup]				
Trended Column	Value				
Enable Deviation Alerting:	max weeks data: min weeks	adata:0			
		Save		Save As	Disable Object Maintenance
Collection Object Regis	stry				
	Object Name	Class	Class	201 Query	Graup ID Edit Data
	Object Name	Туре	1D	show alabal state like 'connections'	0.000 10 Edit Date
2. AKey_reads		Performance Counter	1 :	show global status like 'Key_reads'	0_5500 2012-06-04 13:10:40
3. PKey_read_reques	sts	Performance Counter	1 :	show global status like 'Key_read_request	s' o_5501 2012-06-04 13:34:28
				[Select Action]	▼ Go

- 8. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Object Name. Enter Key read requests.
  - SQL Query. Enter the following:

```
show global status like 'Key_read_requests'
```

- This query searches an internal table that stores information about the MySQL server (show global status).
- The query retrieves the value of the status variable "Key\_read\_requests" (like 'Key\_read\_ requests').
- The variable "Key\_read\_requests" contains the total number of requests to read a key block from the cache.
- Class Type. Select 1 Performance Counter.
- Group Number. Select No Group, and leave the second drop-down as Standard.
- **Trended Column**. Enter Value. The query returns two columns: Variable\_name, which contains the name of the variable (Key\_read\_requests) and Value, which contains the value of the variable. We are interested only in the value in the Value column. We want SL1 to graph the value from the Value column.
- Enable Deviation Alerting. Do not select these checkboxes.

- **Description**. Leave blank.
- Formula. Leave blank.
- 9. Click the [Save] button to save the new collection object.
- 10. In our example, you will notice that the collection objects have the following object IDs:
  - Key\_reads = o\_5500
  - Key\_read\_requests = o\_5501

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the collection objects will have different object IDs. Whether your have imported the Dynamic Application or are creating the Dynamic Application from the steps in this chapter, the collection objects will have different object IDs than on our example SL1 system.

Defining the Presentation Objects

Presentation objects allow you to define how SL1 should use the values collected by the Dynamic Application to create performance graphs.

NOTE: For more details on presentation objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

The *MySQL:DBPerformance* Dynamic Application on the ScienceLogic Customer Portal includes 33 Presentation Objects. This section will walk you through the creation of only two presentation objects.

In this section, we will create the following presentation objects:

- Key\_reads. Displays the value of the Key\_reads collection object, over time. The Key\_reads collection object specifies the number of times MySQL had to access the file system (instead of the key cache) to fetch database indexes. If the value of the Key\_reads collection object is large, then the key buffer is probably too small. The Key\_reads presentation object will graph each collected value of the Key\_reads collection object and its associated date and time.
- Key\_read\_requests. Displays the value of the Key\_read\_requests collection object, over time. The Key\_read\_requests collection object specifies the total number of requests to read a key block from the cache. The Key\_read\_requests presentation object will graph each collected value of the Key\_read\_requests collection object and its associated date and time.

To create these two presentation objects, perform the following:

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Click the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL:DBPerformance**.
- 3. Click the [Presentations] tab. The Dynamic Applications Presentation Objects page appears.

Close P	roperties	<u>C</u> ollections	Pre sentati <u>o</u> ns		Threshold	s	<u>A</u> lerts	Subscri	bers			
Dynamic Applications [541	]  Presentation	Added Success	fully [ 1901 ]   Pres	en	ntation Obje	ects					Guide Reset	:
Report Name Key Active State [Er Data Unit	y_reads nabled]		V		Formula Edito	r						
Abbreviation / Suffx Show as Percent [N Vitals Link [D	o] Disabled ]		<b>▼</b>		7 4 1	8 9 5 6 2 3 0	5500: Ke 5501: Ke	y_reads y_read_reque	sts Add	1	() CE () ) / ^ - +	
Guide Text										.::	Save Save As	
Presentation Object Re 1.  Presentation Object Re 2.  Presentation 2.  Pre	sgistry	Report Name				State Disabled Enabled Disabled	Abbreviation Suffix  	Component Mapping  	Show as Percent No No No	ID pres_1899 pres_1901 pres_1900	Date Edit 2012-06-04 13:23:17 2012-06-04 13:43:45 2012-06-04 13:34:28	555

- 4. First, we will define the *Key\_reads* presentation object. The *Key\_reads* presentation object will graph each collected value of the *Key\_reads* collection object and its associated date and time.
- 5. Supply values in the following fields:
  - **Report Name**. Enter Key\_reads. This name will appear in the NavBar of the **Performance** page for each device that subscribes to the Dynamic Application. This name will also appear as a title for the graph.
  - Active State. Select Enabled. SL1 will immediately create the graph at the next polling session.
  - Data Unit. Leave blank.
  - Abbreviation/Suffix. Leave blank.
  - Show as Percent. Select No.
  - Vitals Link. Select Disabled.

• Formula Editor. Enter the following:

(o\_5500)

• This formula tells SL1 to graph each value of the collection object **o\_5500**. In our example system, this is the object ID for the *Key\_reads* collection object. SL1 will graph each value of this collection object, along with its associated date and time.

**NOTE**: The object ID for the *Key\_reads* collection object will be different on your SL1 system. If you are creating a new Dynamic Application using the instructions in this chapter, please enter the object ID for the *Key\_reads* collection object, as it appears on your SL1 system.

6. Click the **[Save]** button to save the new presentation object.

Close <u>P</u> rop	erties <u>C</u> ollecti	ons Presentati <u>o</u> ns	I	hresholds	Alerts	Subscri	ibers		
Dynamic Applications [541]   P	resentation Added S	uccessfully [ 1902 ]   Pres	entat	tion Objects					Guide Reset
Report Name Key_re	ad_requests		For (c	rmula Editor _5501)					
Active State [Enabl	ed]								
Data Unit									.::
Abbreviation / Suffix				7 8 4 5	9 5500: 5501:	Key_reads Key_read_reque	ests		() CE
Vitals Link [Disab	led ]	<b>•</b>		1 2 0	3		Add		- +
Guide Text									
									Save
								:	Save As
Presentation Object Regis	try		_						
	Report Na	ime		State	Abbreviatio Suffix	n Component Mapping	Show as Percent	ID	Date Edit
1. CKey_reads				Disabled			No	pres_1899	2012-06-04 13:23:17
2. AKey_reads				Enabled			NO	pres_1901	2012-06-04 13:43:45
4. PKey read requests				Enabled			No	pres_1900 pres_1902	2012-06-04 13:46:59

 Next, we will define the Key\_read\_requests presentation object. The Key\_read\_requests presentation object will graph each collected value of the Key\_read\_requests collection object and its associated date and time.

- 8. Supply values in the following fields:
  - **Report Name**. Enter Key\_read\_requests. This name will appear in the NavBar of the **Performance** page for each device that subscribes to the Dynamic Application. This name will also appear as a title for the graph.
  - Active State. Select Enabled. SL1 will immediately create the graph at the next polling session.
  - Data Unit. Leave blank.
  - Abbreviation/Suffix. Leave blank.
  - Show as Percent. Select No.
  - Vitals Link. Select Disabled.
  - Formula Editor. Enter the following:

(o\_5501)

• This formula tells SL1 to graph each value of the collection object **o\_5501**. On our example SL1 system, this is the object ID for the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object. SL1 will graph each value of this collection object, along with its associated date and time.

**NOTE**: The object ID for the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object will be different on your SL1 system. If you are creating a new Dynamic Application using the instructions in this chapter, please enter the object ID for the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object, as it appears on your SL1 system.

9. Click the **[Save]** button to save the new presentation object.

### Defining the Threshold Objects

A threshold object is an object that you can use in the formula for an alert definition or a presentation object, just as you would use a collection object.

Threshold objects can also appear as thresholds in the **Device Thresholds** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager > wrench icon > Thresholds ) for each device that subscribes to the Dynamic Application.

**NOTE**: For more details on threshold objects, see the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

The *MySQL:DBPerformance* Dynamic Application on the ScienceLogic Customer Portal includes seven threshold objects. This section will walk you through the creation of only one threshold object.

• **Keycache\_hitrate**. We will use this threshold in the formula for two alerts. The initial alert is triggered when MySQL fetches database indexes from the filesystem instead of from the key cache. This threshold defines the percentage of fetches that can be from the filesystem instead of from the key cache before SL1 generates an alert.

To create this threshold object, perform the following:

- 1. Go to the **System > Manage > Applications** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Click the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL:DBPerformance**
- 3. Click the [Thresholds] tab. The Dynamic Applications Threshold Objects page appears.

Close <u>P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollectio	ns Presentati <u>o</u> ns <u>T</u> hresholds <u>A</u>	Alerts Subscribers
Dynamic Applications [595]   Threshold Objects   Thre	shold Added Successfully   Editing Threshold [296]	Guide Reset
Threshold Name Keycache_hitrate Override Threshold Value [Enabled]	Numeric Range: High [100] 100 0 Numeric Range: Low [0] 0 0 0	Threshold Type [Percentage]  Threshold Unit Save Save As Threshold Value 99
Threshold Object Registry		
Name	Override Ty	ype Numeric Numeric Threshold Threshold ID Date Edit Range High Range Low Unit Value
1. <i>P</i> Keycache_hitrate	Enabled Perce	entage 100 0 99 t_296 2013-08-07 15:42:18 💣

- 4. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Threshold Name. Enter Keycache hitrate.
  - Override Threshold Value. Select Enabled. This threshold will appear in the the Device Thresholds page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager > wrench icon > Thresholdsfor devices that subscribe to the Dynamic Application.
  - Numeric Range: High. Enter 100. By default, the highest possible value for this threshold will be "100". This value will appear at the high end of the slider in the the **Device Thresholds** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager > wrench icon > Thresholds.
  - Numeric Range: Low. Enter 0. By default, the lowest possible value for this threshold will be "0". This value will appear at the low end of the slider in the the **Device Thresholds** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager > wrench icon > Thresholds.
  - Threshold Type. Select Percentage.
  - Threshold Value. Enter 99.
- 5. Click the [Save] button to save the new threshold.

- 6. If you imported the Dynamic Application from the ScienceLogic Customer portal, you will notice that the threshold object has the following object ID:
  - Keycache\_hitrate = t\_130

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the threshold object will have different object IDs. Whether your have imported the Dynamic Application or are creating the Dynamic Application from the steps in this chapter, the collection objects will have different object IDs than on our example SL1 system.

#### Defining the Alerts

Alerts allow you to examine and manipulate values retrieved by a Dynamic Application. An alert defines the conditions during which you would like SL1 to insert a message in the device log. You can define events that are triggered when the alert message appears in a device log.

NOTE: For details on alerts, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

The **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application on the ScienceLogic Customer Portal includes 14 alerts. This section will walk you through the creation of only two alerts.

In this section, we will create the following alerts:

- MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_low. This alert compares the value of the Key\_reads collection object to the value of the Key\_read\_requests collection object. Remember that the Key\_reads collection object specifies the number of times the MySQL server has had to fetch a database index from the file system instead of from the cache. The Key\_read\_requests object specifies the number of times the MySQL server has fetched a database index from cache. The alert says "If the number of times MySQL has had to fetch a database index from the file system is 1% or more of the number of times MySQL has fetched a database index from cache, generate an alert of severity "minor".
- MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_normal. This alert compares the value of the Key\_reads collection object to the value of the Key\_read\_requests collection object. The alert says "If the MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_low alert is still active, and if the number of times MySQL has had to fetch a database index from the file system is less than 1% of the number of times MySQL has fetched a database index from cache, generate an alert of severity "healthy".

To create these two alerts, perform the following:

- 1. Go to the Dynamic Applications Manager page (System > Manage > Applications.
- 2. Click the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL:DBPerformance**.

3. Click the [Alerts] tab. The Dynamic Applications Alert Objects page appears.

Close <u>P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollections Presentations <u>T</u> h	nresholds <u>A</u> lerts Subscribers
Dynamic Applications [541]   Alert Objects   Alert Added Successfully   Editing Ale	ert [920] Guide Reset
Policy Name     MySQL:Keycache_htrate_low       Active State     [Enabled]       WySQL:Keycache hitrate: %V% is low. Threshold:       %T.	Formula Editor result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) < threshold(t_191) .::
Maintain State [Yes]  Trigger Alert [None] Save Save As	7         8         9         1 131: Keycache Intrate o 5499: Discover/Object o 5500: Key_reads         r()         ()         CE           1         2         3         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         -         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I         I <t< th=""></t<>
Alert Object Registry       Polcy Name       Formu         1. Polcy Name       result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) < 1	ia State Maintain Events ID Edit Date threshold(t_191) Enabled Yes I∑No a_920 2012-06-04 14:48:45 ₫

- 4. First, we will define the MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_low alert.
- 5. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Policy Name. Enter MySQL:Keycache hitrate low.
  - Active State. Select Enabled. SL1 will monitor this alert.
  - Log Message. If this alert evaluates to TRUE, the alert will insert the following message in the device log (on the device where the condition occurred). Enter the following:

MySQL Keycache hitrate: %V% is low. Threshold: %T.

- The %V variable says "substitute the value returned by the **result** function".
- The **%T** variable says "substitute the value returned by the **threshold** function".
- Maintain State. Select Yes. This alert will maintain its state until it is explicitly cleared by an event.
- Trigger Alert. Select None. This is a deprecated field.
- **Formula Editor**. This is where you describe the conditions under which you want SL1 to make an entry in the device log. Enter the following:

```
result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) < threshold(t_191)
```

- This formula says: Divide the number of *Key\_reads* by the number of *Key\_read\_requests* and convert that value to percent. If the percentage of *Key\_Reads* is 1% or more, the alert will evaluate to TRUE. When the alert evaluates to TRUE, it makes an entry of severity "minor" in the appropriate device log.
- **o\_5500** is the object ID of the *Key\_reads* collection object.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the *Key\_reads* collection object will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

o\_5501 is the object ID of the Key\_read\_requests collection object. If you have created the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application manually (instead of importing the Dynamic Application from the ScienceLogic Customer Portal), the Key\_read\_requests collection object will have a different object ID on your SL1 system. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

• *t\_191* is the object ID of the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

- Remember that we set the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold to "99".
- The **result** function returns the value of the formula and stores the value of the formula in the **%V** variable.
- The **threshold** function returns the value of the threshold variable and stores the value of the threshold variable in the **%T** variable.
- 6. Click the **[Save]** button to save the alert.
- 7. In our example SL1 system, you will notice that the alert object has the following object ID:
  - MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_low = a\_920

NOTE: On your SL1 system, the alert object will have a different object ID.

8. Next we will define the MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_normal alert.

<u>Close P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollections Presentati <u>o</u> ns <u>T</u>	hresholds <u>A</u> lerts	Subso	ribers			
Dynamic Applications [541]   Alert Objects   Alert Added Successfully   Editing Al	lert [921]					Guide Reset
Policy Name         MySQL:Keycache_htrate_nomal           Active State         [Enabled]           MySQL Keycache hitrate: %V% is normal	Formula Editor result(100-((0_5500/o_55 active(a_920)	;01) <b>*</b> 100)	) >= th	reshold	(t_191)	and
Maintain State [No]  Trigger Alert [None]	7 8 9 t_12 4 5 6 0_5	91: Keycach 499: Discov 500: Key_re	e_hitrate ery Object ads			() () CE '' != ==
Save Save As	0		Add			- + <=
Alert Object Registry						5755.4
Policy Name Formula 1.  MySQL:Keycache_hitrate_low result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) < threshold the second secon	old(t_191)	Enabled	Yes	Events //No	a_920	Edit Date 2012-06-04 14:48:45
<ol> <li>MySQL:Keycache_hitrate_normal result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) &gt;= three</li> </ol>	eshold(t_191) and active(a_920)	Enabled	No	<u>∎</u> No	a_921	2012-06-04 15:00:37

- 9. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Policy Name. Enter MySQL:Keycache hitrate normal.
  - Active State. Select Enabled. SL1 will monitor this alert.
  - Log Message. If this alert evaluates to TRUE, the alert will insert the following message in the device log (on the device where the condition occurred.)Enter the following:

MySQL Keycache hitrate: %V% is normal.

- The **%V** variable says "substitute the value returned by the **result** function".
- Maintain State. Select No. This alert will not maintain its state and does not need to be explicitly cleared by an event.
- Trigger Alert. Select None. This is a deprecated field.

• **Formula Editor**. This is where you describe the conditions under which you want SL1 to make an entry in the device log. Enter the following:

```
result(100-((o_5500/o_5501)*100)) >= threshold(t_191) and active(a_920)
```

- This formula says: Divide the number of Key\_reads by the number of Key\_read\_requests and convert that value to percent. If the alert MySQL:keycache\_hitrate\_low is still active, and if the percentage of Key\_Reads is 1% or less, the alert will evaluate to TRUE. When the alert evaluates to TRUE, it makes an entry of severity "healthy" in the appropriate device log.
- **o\_5500** is the object ID of the *Key\_reads* collection object.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the *Key\_reads* collection object will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

• **o\_5501** is the object ID of the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

• *t\_191* is the object ID of the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold.

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the **Keycache\_hitrate** threshold will have a different object ID . Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

• **a\_920** is the object ID of the alert **MySQL:keycache\_hitrate\_low.** 

**NOTE**: On your SL1 system, the **Keycache\_hitrate\_low** alert will have a different object ID. Substitute the object ID from your SL1 system.

- Remember that we set the *Keycache\_hitrate* threshold to "99".
- The **result** function returns the value of the formula and stores the value of the formula in the **%V** variable.
- The **threshold** function returns the value of the threshold variable and stores the value of the threshold variable in the **%T** variable.
- The **active** function checks the state of a specified alert. If the specified alert is still active, the **active** function returns the value TRUE.
- 10. Click the **[Save]** button to save the alert.

- 11. On our example SL1 system, notice that the alert object has the following object ID:
  - MySQL:Keycache\_hitrate\_normal = a\_921

NOTE: On your SL1 system, the alert object will have a different object ID.

#### Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application

If you want to align the **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application with SL1's MySQL database, you must create a database credential that allows access to SL1's MySQL database.

Before you define the credential, you must collect the information you will need. In this case, you will need the username and password for the MySQL database. This account was defined during setup and is different than the account for logging into SL1.

If you can log in to the phpMyAdmin tool from the **Appliance Manager** page (System > Settings > Appliances), you can use the username and password you used to access the phpMyAdmin tool as the username and password in the credential. For details on accessing the phpMyAdmin tool, see the manual **System Administration**. If you need help, ask your administrator.

For details on the database password, see the manual System Administration.

NOTE: For details on credentials, see the manual Discovery and Credentials.

To create the credential for this example:

1. Go to the **Credential Management** page (System > Manage > Credentials).

red	ntial Management   Credentials Found [40]												Create	Reset	Guide
	Profile Name •	Organization	RO	RW Use	DA Use	Type	Credential User	н	21	Port	Timeout (ms)	ID	Last Edited	Edited By	Ø
1.	Backups	(all orgs)				Basic/Snippet	foo	localhost		1	1	42	2012-03-26 15:32:16	em7admin	
2.	Pc0sm0s	all orgs]	4		5	SNMP	-			161	1500	30	2012-02-22 18:45:57	em7admin	- P
3.	Cloudkick - Example	all orgs]				Basic/Snippet	[SECURITY KEY GOES H	127.0.0.1		443	5000	11	2012-02-22 15:20:00	em7admin	
¢. [	CUCM PerfmonService 8.0 Example	all orgs]				SOAP/XML Host	-	%D		8443	2000	12	2012-02-22 15:20:01	em7admin	
. 1	EM7 Collector Database	all orgs]				Database	root	%D		7707	0	13	2012-02-22 15:20:19	em7admin	
	EM7 Default V2	(all orgs)	18		1	SNMP	-		-	161	1500	16	2012-02-22 15:20:26	em7admin	
	PEM7 Default V3	(al orgs)	1			SNMP	em7defaultv3		-	161	500	17	2012-02-22 15:20:26	em7admin	
	PEMC - Example	al oros)				Basic/Snippet	root	%D		443	60000	8	2012-02-22 15:19:39	em7admin	
	GoGrid - Example	all orgs]				Basic/Snippet	ISECURITY KEY GOES H	127.0.0.1		443	5000	14	2012-05-24 14:17:59	em7admin	
d	LifeSize: Endpoint SNMP	al oros)				SNMP	control			161	3000	48	2012-05-15 11:44:50	em7admin	
	LifeSize: Endpoint SSH/CLI	allall orgs]				Basic/Snippet	auto	%D		22	3	47	2012-05-15 11:44:50	em7admin	
	Polycom - Advanced	alial orosi				SOAP/XML Host	admin	%D		80	20000	4	2012-05-24 14:16:12	em7admin	
	Polycom - Interface	allal orosi				SOAP/XML Host	admin	%D		80	20000	5	2012-05-24 14:16:12	em7admin	
	Polycom - Network	alal orosi				SOAPOWIL Host	admin	%D		80	20000	6	2012-05-24 14:16:12	em7admin	
	Protocom - System	alal orosi				SOAPXMI Host	admin	\$0		80	20000	3	2012-05-24 14:16:12	em7admin	
1	Protycom CDR	(al oros)				SOAPXML Host	admin	\$0		80	20000	7	2012-05-24 14:16:12	em7admin	
	Provis	(al oros)				SOAPXMI Host	80	10 100 100 15		443	2000	33	2012-03-13 12:48:23	em7admin	
	90A 08	a la orosì				Database	reat	10.0.9.52		7708	0	34	2012-03-02 13-59-25	em7admin	
	Backenaca - Evamola	a fell orge]				Basic/Sninnet	DISEDNAME GOES HEDE	127.0.0.1		443	5000	28	2012-05-24 14:18:27	em7admin	
1	Psciencel noic AD	a fell orge]				I DARIAD	96107964	192 168 40 11		380	1000	49	2012-05-31 12:10:20	em7admin	
	A Coloneel colo AD	allal orgal				LDARIAD	Multipled	102 100 10 11		200	1000	26	2012 05 21 12:11:10	om7admin	
1	PiccienceLogic Ro BEcienceLogic Database Secure	al orgej			2	Database	real and	10 100 100 0		7706	0	42	2012/03/31 12:11:10	omTedmin	
	Acciencel opic Managana	al orgaj			4	SOADOWI Host	1001	www.sciencelonic.com		20	2000	44	2012-04-08 10:37:30	em7admin	
1	BONNE Duble 1/1	(al oron)	6			CNUD	~	www.accandblogic.com		161	1500	10	2012-04-03 19:30:43	em7admin	
	Beauto Ducce 100	(an orga)				CHIND			-	101	4600	10	2012-02-22 15:20:20	on Tadaia	
1	Porter Public V2	(al orgs)	0	-		COADOVIU Hant	-	10 100 100 22	-	101	2000	13	2012-02-22 15:20:26	emraumh am7adais	
	Pandhara Endesist, Can En	(al orgs)		-	-	SOAPANL Host	autoria.	10.100.100.22		0000	10000	22	2012-03-12 18:07:34	emraumh em7admia	
1	Prandberg Endpoint - Config	all orgsj				SUAPIXML Host	admin	760		00	10000	22	2012-05-24 14:16:24	em/admin	
	Prandberg Endpoint - mistory	allan orgs]				SUAPIXIL Host	aomin	760		00	10000	23	2012-05-24 14:18:24	em/aomin	
1	randoerg Endpoint - Status	affan orde]				SUMPIXIE Host	aomin	760		00	10000	21	2012-05-24 14:18:24	emraomih	
	Priomcat Status - Example	[at orgs]				SUAPIXIL Host	IMANAGER ACCOUNT G	%0		8080	2000	9	2012-02-22 15:19:40	emraamin	
ł	PUCS	setan orga]				SUAP/XML Host	-	%U		80	5000	25	2012-02-22 15:20:31	em/aomin	
	WWware Server	(all orgs)			5	SOAP/XML Host	-	%D		443	30000	46	2012-05-24 14:18:45	em7admin	
ł	VMware Web Service 5.0	(all orgs)				SOAP/XML Host	-	%D		443	30000	45	2012-04-13 13:57:40	em7admin	
	Windows cluster	(all orgs)			1	Basic/Snippet	QA\clusteradmin	%D		135	3000	29	2012-03-14 15:59:13	em7admin	
4	Windows em7admin	(all orgs)			2	Basic/Snippet	em7admin	%D		135	3000	28	2012-02-22 16:02:43	em7admin	
	@Windows.em7user	alial orosi			22	Resin/Sninnet	em7uger	%D		1	3000	27	2012_02_22 19:48:07 [Select Action]	em7admin	

2. In the the **Credential Management** page, click the **[Create]** menu. Select Database Credential.

Credential Editor		Close / Esc
Create New Database Credential		Reset
Basic Settings		
Profile Name	DB Typ	be
	[Oracle & *SQLNet ]	
DB Name	DB User	Password
Hostname/IP	Port	
	1521	
Oracle Settings		
Oracle Connect Type	SID (if required)	
[Oracle System Identifier (SID)]		
Sauge Comments		
Save		

- 3. The **Credential Editor** modal page appears. In this page, you can define the new database credential. To define the new credential, supply values in the following fields:
  - Profile Name. Enter EM7 DB.
  - **DB Type**. Select MySQL.
  - DB Name. Enter master.
  - DB User. Username associated with a valid account on the database.
  - Password. Password associated with a valid account on the database.
  - Hostname/IP. Hostname or IP address where the database resides.

**NOTE**: To use the localhost, in the *Hostname/IP* field, enter the IP address 127.0.0.1. The credential will not work if you enter the string *localhost* in the *Hostname/IP* field.

- Port. Enter 7706.
- 4. Click the **[Save]** button to save the new database credential.

#### Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device

For our example, we aligned the *MySQL:DBPerformance* Dynamic Application with the Database Server.

There are three ways to align the **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application with a device:

• During initial discovery or nightly auto-discovery. Because the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application includes a discovery object, SL1 can automatically align this Dynamic Application with devices

during discovery. For details on discovery, see the manual **Discovery and Credentials**.

- Manual discovery for the Dynamic Application. Because the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application includes a discovery object, SL1 can automatically align this Dynamic Application with devices. From the Dynamic Applications Manager page, you can manually execute discovery for all devices, but only for the MySQL:DBPerformance Dynamic Application. For details on how to perform this type of discovery, see the manual Dynamic Application Development..
- Manually associate the Dynamic Application with an existing device. For details on how to perform this type of discovery, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

This section will walk you through the steps to manually align the *MySQL:DBPerformance* Dynamic Application with the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance.

To manually align the Dynamic Application to the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance:

- 1. Go to the **Appliance Manager** page (System > Settings > Appliances). Determine the device name of the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance.
- 2. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 3. Find the device where the database resides (either the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance). Click the device's wrench icon (
- 4. The Device Properties page appears. Click the [Collections] tab.
- 5. In the **Dynamic Application Collections** page, click the **[Action]** menu and select Add Dynamic Application.
- 6. The **Dynamic Application Alignment** page appears. Select MySQL:DBPerformance in the **Dynamic Applications** pane, and select EM7 DB in the **Credentials** pane.



- 7. Click the [Save] button to add the Dynamic Application to the device.
- 8. At the next polling period, SL1 should start collecting the data specified in the **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application from the device where SL1's database resides.

#### Viewing Reports for the Dynamic Application

For our example, we aligned the **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application with the Database Server on our device em7\_ao.

To view the graphs for the presentation objects *key\_reads* and *key\_read\_requests*:

- 1. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 2. Find the device for which you want to edit thresholds. Click its bar-graph icon (41).
- 3. Click the [Performance] tab. The Device Performance page appears.
- 4. In the NavBar, find the entry for the *MySQL:DBPerformance* Dynamic Application and expand it. Select the entry for *Key\_reads*.
- 5. The graph for Key\_reads appears.

Close	Summary	Performance	T <u>o</u> pology	<u>C</u> onfigs	Journals	Interfaces				
Logs	Events	<u>T</u> ickets	Software	Processes	Services	TCP Ports	Organization			
Logs Device Name IP Address / ID Class Organization Collection Mode Description Device Hostname File Systems	Events BLADE1 10.20.0.6   74 Microsoft System Active Hardware: x86 Fa	Tickets mily 15 Model 37 Stepping Options Rep Zoom EH 12H 10	Software	Processes Managed Type Category Sub-Class Uptime Collection Time Group / Collector St	Services Physical Dev Servers Windows Se 0 days, 00:00 2014-10-03 CUG   MOSS_ rstem Vitals 3	TCP Ports           ice           rver 2003           0:00           16:15:00           Patch_Al0           Summary Report	Organization	V A Reset 10/02/2014 16:17 To	Vindows 20 Vindows 20 SLADE1	003
Host Resource: Host Resource: HySQL:DBPerfor Key_reads Key_read_re	Memory CPU Irmance equests	50 60 40 200			M					1ms 0.5ms
	Find	18:00 a Date Range Selecti Start [10/01/2014 16:1 End [10/03/2014 16:1 Presets  Set 0	02. Oct Dn: 9 III 2 Latency 9 III 2 CPU Avera 2 CPU Avera 2 CPU Avera 2 Swap Mem	03. Oct	12:00	00'00 Mouse-over   	03. Oct III Min M 0.000 0 19 8	12:00	12:00 99 0.100 0 19 8	Missed Polls 1 1 9 9 9

- 6. The graph displays the value of the *Key\_reads* collection object in the y-axis and the date and time in the x-axis.
- 7. In the NavBar, find the entry for the **MySQL:DBPerformance** Dynamic Application and expand it. Select the entry for **Key\_read\_requests**.
- 8. The graph for *Key\_read\_requests* appears.
- 9. The graph displays the value of the *Key\_read\_requests* collection object in the y-axis and the date and time in the x-axis.

#### Viewing Alerts for the Dynamic Application

To view alerts for the Dynamic Application:

- 1. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 2. Find the subscriber device for which you want to edit thresholds. Click its wrench icon  $(\checkmark)$ .
- 3. Click the [Logs] tab. The Device Logs & Messages page appears.

Close	<u>S</u> ummary	Pe	erforn	mance T <u>o</u> pology <u>C</u>	onfigs	Journals	Interfaces		
<u>L</u> ogs	<u>E</u> vents		Ticke	ets Software Pro	ocesses	Services	TCP Ports	Organization	
Device Name	BLADE1				Managed Type	Physical Device			
IP Address / ID	10 20 0 61 74				Category	Servers			
Chee	Microsoft				Sub Class	Windows Serve	ar 2003		
Oresting	Sustan				Uniters .	0 days 00.00.0	0		Mindaus 2002
Organization	System				Uptime	0 days, 00.00.0	0		Windows2003
Collection Mode	Active				Collection Time	2014-10-03 16:	35:00		📥 🗢 📶 📼 🥓
Description	Hardware: x86 F	amily 15 M	Aodel 3	37 Stepping 1 AT/AT COMPATIBLE - Soft	W Group / Collector	CUG   MOSS_Pat	tch_Al0		BLADE1
Device Hostname									
Device Logs & M	essages   Mess	ages Fo	und [	502 ]					Reset Guide
	[Search All M	laepeea	_	where Message is like					Search
	[Dedicit Air Mi	coodgeoj							Sealur
Date T	me Source	Event ID S	Severity						M
1. 2014-10-03	16:35:13 Internal	106639		Database connection problem: Dynamic	c App: 891, Could not	t connect to datab	base using credent	ial EM7 DB (61): Could n	ot connect to database using connect(
2. 2014-10-02	20.52.19 Internal 20.52.19 Internal	105365		Network Latency below threshold					
4 2014-10-02	20:52:19 Internal 20:51:41 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
5 2014-10-02	20:51:41 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold: 1	In Response				E.
6. 2014-10-02	20:48:06 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
7. 2014-10-02	20:48:06 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold: I	No Response				
8. 2014-10-02	20:43:07 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
9. 2014-10-02	20:43:07 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold: 1	No Response				
10. 2014-10-02	20:38:11 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
11. 2014-10-02	20:38:11 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold: 1	lo Response				
12. 2014-10-02	20:33:11 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
13. 2014-10-02	20:33:11 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold: 1	lo Response				
14. 2014-10-02	20:30:20 Internal	105013		App: 471, Snippet: 420 reported a colle	ction problem (Explai	nation: Timeout)			
15. 2014-10-02	20:29:36 Internal	105006		App: 473, Snippet: 424 reported a colle	ction problem (Explai	nation: Timeout)			
16. 2014-10-02	20:28:14 Internal	104735		Device Failed Availability Check: UDP -	SNMP				
17. 2014-10-02	20:28:14 Internal	104736		Network latency exceeded threshold. I	vo Response				
10. 2014-10-02	20.15.32 Internal 20:15:22 Internal			Completed TCP/P port scap	vice				
20 2014-10-02	20:15:32 Internal			Completed scan for SSL certificates					
21 2014-10-02	20:15:32 Internal			Completed IP address classification					
22. 2014-10-02	20:15:32 Internal			Completed scheduled rediscovery					
23. 2014-10-02	20:15:31 Internal			Completed device properties check					
24. 2014-10-01	20:15:25 Internal			Completed IP address classification					
25. 2014-10-01	20:15:25 Internal			Completed scheduled rediscovery					
26. 2014-10-01	20:15:24 Internal			Completed device properties check					
27. 2014-10-01	20:15:24 Internal			Completed application discovery on de-	vice				
28. 2014-10-01	20:15:24 Internal			Completed TCP/IP port scan					
29. 2014-10-01	20:15:24 Internal			Completed scan for SSL certificates					-
•				m					Þ
									[Viewing Page: 1]

4. Look for alert messages from the Dynamic Application. In our example, our MySQL database did not fetch any database indexes from the file system, so only the "normal" alert appears in our device log.

### Changing the Threshold for a Subscriber Device

You can change one or more threshold values for a single device. When SL1 evaluates alerts **for that device**, it will use the threshold values set in the **Device Threshold** page instead of the threshold value set in the **Dynamic Application Threshold Objects** page.

To edit a threshold for a single device:

- 1. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 2. Find the device for which you want to edit thresholds. Click its wrench icon ( $\checkmark$ ).
- 3. Click the [Thresholds] tab. The Device Thresholds page appears.

Close	Properties	T <u>h</u> resholds	<u>C</u> ollections	Monitors				
<u>S</u> chedule	<u>L</u> ogs	T <u>o</u> olbox	Interfaces	<u>R</u> elationships	<u>T</u> ickets	Redirects	<u>N</u> otes	l
Device Name	BLADE1			Managed Type	Physical Device			
IP Address / ID	10.20.0.6   74			Category	Servers			
Class	Microsoft			Sub-Class	Windows Server 2	2003		
Organization	System			Uptime	0 days, 00:00:00			Windows 2003
Collection Mode	Active			Collection Time	2014-10-03 16:35:	00		🔔 🛎 📶 🖶 🥜
Description	Hardware: x86 Family	y 15 Model 37 Stepping	1 AT/AT COMPATIBLE	- S Group / Collector	CUG   MOSS_Patch	_AI0		BLADE1
Device Hostname								
Device Thresho	ds						Actions	Reset Guide
Dynamic App	Thresholds   Host	Resource: CPU						Â
	CPU Utilization High				04	10 - (		
					~	[Default, 90]		=
	Raw Data Retention		•	<u> </u>	days	[Default: 7]		
Frequ	ent Rollup Retention	÷	1	<b></b> 31	days	[Default: 31]		
Но	urly Rollup Retention	<u> </u>		120	days	[Default: 120]		
,	aily Pollup Petention		1	. 720	dava	[D- ()h 700]		
-		•		. 730	uays	[Default: 730]		
				Save				
				Gave				
Dynamic App	Thresholds   Host	Resource: CPU Conf	ig					
	Raw Data Retention				records	Default: 71		
	L					[Default: 1]		
				Save				
					-			
Dynamic App	Thresholds   Host	Resource: Memory						
Swap Me	mory Utilization High	<u> </u>		60	%	[Default: 60]		
Physical Me	mory Utilization High	<u> </u>			0/_	[D=f=uth 80]		
, injoitai int					~	[Delauk ov]		
	Raw Data Retention		· · ·	<u> </u>	days	[Default: 7]		
Frequ	ent Rollup Retention	÷		31	days	[Default: 31]		
Но	urly Rollup Retention	<u> </u>		120	days	[Default: 120]		
						[Bordant, 120]		•

- 4. In **Device Thresholds** page, move the sliders to edit one or more thresholds.
- 5. To save your changes, click the **[Save]** button.

## Example

# 2

## Example of a Dynamic Application of Type "Database Configuration"

#### Overview

In this chapter, we will walk through a Dynamic Application that monitors the performance of a MySQL database.

This chapter will walk you through the Dynamic Application **MySQL:DBConfiguration**. The **MySQL:DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application makes multiple queries to an internal table in MySQL. This internal table stores variables that contain configuration information for the MySQL server, such as MySQL version, the configuration of the auto-commit feature, the maximum allowed number of connections, and the sizes of various caches.

In this chapter, we have aligned the Dynamic Application with the Database Server. The Database Server uses a MySQL database.

Use the following menu options to navigate the SL1 user interface:

- To view a pop-out list of menu options, click the menu icon (三).

This chapter covers the following topics:

Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	
Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application	
Defining the Collection Objects	42
Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application	
Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device	45
Viewing the Configuration Report for the Dynamic Application	

#### Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application

To create the container for this Dynamic Application and define its general properties, perform the following:

NOTE: For details on each field and its possible options, see the manual *Dynamic Application Development*.

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Select the **[Actions]** button, and then select Create New Dynamic Application. The **Dynamic Applications Create New Application** page appears.

Close Create				
Dynamic Applications   Create New Application				Guide Reset
Application Name Application Type [SNMP Performance] Caching No caching Device Dashboard [None]	Version Number [Version 1.0] V Operational State [Enabled] V Poll Frequency [Every 15 Minutes] V	Aban [[Default]  - values - values	don Collection  Context  Row Option  Column Option	Disable Rollup of Data           Image: Component Mapping           Image: Component Mapping
Description	]			L.
Release Notes & Change Log	● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●	C → MA C <sub>1</sub> H → Size		

- 3. Supply values in the following fields:
- Application Name. Enter MySQL:DBConfiguration.
- Application Type. The protocol SL1 will use and the type of data that will be collected. Select Database Configuration.

- Version Number. Accept the default value. You can customize this value and increment it according to your change-management policies.
- **Operational State**. Specifies whether SL1 will collect data from devices using this Dynamic Application. This field also specifies whether SL1 will automatically align this Dynamic Application to devices during discovery, re-discovery, and nightly auto-discovery. Select *Enabled*.
- **Poll Frequency**. Frequency at which SL1 will poll devices that use this Dynamic Application. Select "Every 2 Minutes", so we can quickly view retrieved data in this example.
- Abandon Collection. Accept the default value. Specifies how many collection objects must be unavailable before the Dynamic Application should stop trying to collect data and wait until the next scheduled collection session. *Default* specifies a threshold of two collection objects.

**NOTE**: For all objects except those retrieved from a database, the timeout limit is specified in the credential. For database objects, the timeout limit is specified internally by SL1.

- **Context**. Leave this field blank.
- 4. Select the **[Save]** button to save the Dynamic Application.

#### Defining the Discovery Object for the Dynamic Application

A *discovery object* is a type of collection object. If you want SL1 to automatically align devices with a Dynamic Application during discovery, you must include a discovery object in that Dynamic Application.

NOTE: For more details on discovery objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

To create a discovery object for the Dynamic Application **MySQL: DBConfiguration**, we will write a query that will return a value only if MySQL is running on a device.

To create the discovery object:

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Select the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named *MySQL:DB Configuration*.
- 3. Select the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page appears.

- 4. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Object Name. Enter Discovery Object.
  - **SQL Query**. This field specifies the query that SL1 will use to collect the discovery object. We will query a value that indicates that a MySQL database exists, regardless of the status of the data in the database. Enter the following query:

show global variables like 'version'

- This query searches an internal table that stores configuration information about the MySQL database (show global variables).
- The query retrieves the value of the status variable "version" (like 'version').
- The variable "version" contains the version number and name of the MySQL server.
- This query will return a value only if MySQL is installed on a device. This query is not dependent on the data stored in the database.
- Class Type. Select [100] Discovery.
- Select the [Save] button to save the collection object and the page will change to appear as it does below. Because this collection object has been defined with a *Class Type* of [100] *Discovery*, SL1 displays additional fields that are specific to discovery objects.

Close <u>P</u> roperties	<u>C</u> ollections	<u>T</u> hresholds	Alerts	Subscribers				
Dynamic Applications [542]   Collection	on Objects   Object Ad	ded [ 5502 ]				G	uide Re:	set
Object Name	Discovery Object							
	show global varia	bles like 'v	ersion'					
SQL Query								
			.::					
Class Type	[100 Discovery]							
Tabular	r 📄							
Alignment Condition	[Align if OID is present]		V					
Validity Check	Where:	is > Result	Validity Check is a	n optional setting that is use	ed to validate if a disco	very object is reliably rep	porting data. Some a	agents
			or clients may res	sone to a query, even in the	related relative of serv			
			Save Save	As		Disable Object	Maintenance	
Collection Object Registry								
Object N	lame	Class Type	Class ID	SQL Query	Group ID	Asset Change Link Alerting	Edit Date	
1. <i>J</i> Discovery		Discovery	100 show global va	riables like 'version'	o_5502 ·	201	2-06-04 17:27:53	
				[Select Ac	tion]			Go
1								

- 6. Enter values in the following fields:
  - Alignment Condition. Specifies how this discovery object should be evaluated. Select Align if OID is present. This choice tells SL1 to automatically align the Dynamic Application with each device that returns a value for the query in the SQL Query field.
  - Validity Check. Leave blank.

#### Defining the Collection Objects

This section will walk you through the creation of only six collection objects for the **MySQL: DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application.

NOTE: For more details on collection objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

In this section, we will create the following collection objects:

- *mysql\_version*. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable version. This configuration variable contains the version number and version name of the MySQL software.
- **auto\_commit**. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable *autocommit*. This configuration variable specifies whether the autocommit mode is enabled (set to 1). If autocommit is enabled, users do not have to commit each transaction. If autocommit is not enabled, users must either commit each transaction to save it to the database.
- *max\_connections*. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable *max\_connections*. This configuration variable specifies the maximum allowed number of client connections to the database.
- **key\_cache\_size**. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable key\_buffer\_size. This configuration variable specifies the size of the cache where index information is stored.
- **query\_cache\_size**. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable query\_cache\_size. This configuration variable specifies the size of the cache where query results are stored.
- **thead\_cache\_size**. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable *thread\_cache\_size*. This configuration variable specifies the number of threads that should be saved in the thread cache.

To create these collection objects, perform the following:

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Manage > Applications).
- 2. Select the wrench icon (*P*) for the Dynamic Application named **MySQL: DBConfiguration**.
- 3. Select the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page appears.

Close	Properties	Collectio	ons <u>T</u> hreshol	ds	A	lerts Subscri	bers							
Dynamic Applications	[894]   Collection O	bjects											Guide	Reset
Object Name	MvSQL version													
	show global var	iables l:	ike 'version'						Descri	ption				
SOL Query														
Suc addry														
Class Tree	[10 Confin Characteri													:
class type	[To coning character]													
String Type	[Standard]	<b></b>			_				Form	uia				
Group / Usage Type	[Group 1]	•	[Standard]		•									
Asset / Form Link	[None]		[None]		-									
Inventory Link	[Disabled]													
Change Alerting	[Disabled]													
Table Alignment	[Left]													
Trended Column	Value													
Hide Object														
					Save	Save As					Disa	ble Ob	oject Maintenance	
Collection Object R	Registry													
			Class	Class		001.0		-		Asset	Change		5.00	
	Object Name		Туре	ID		Suc duery		Sioup	10	Link	Alerting	Aligh	Edit Date	
1. Pauto_commt			Config Numeric Discovery	15	show glob	al variables like 'autocomr al variables like 'version'	niť	2	0_9198	t	nabled	Lett	2014-10-06 18:07	:27
<ol> <li>Biscovery</li> <li>Biscovery</li></ol>	e		Config Numeric	15	show glob	al variables like 'key_buffe	er_size'	3	o_9200	E	nabled	Left	2014-10-06 18:08	:05
4. Amax_connection	ons		Config Numeric	15	show glob	al variables like 'max_con	nections'	2	o_9199	E	nabled	Left	2014-10-06 18:07	:21
5. <i>P</i> MySQL_versi	ion		Config Character	10	show glo	bal variables like 'vers	ion'	1	o_9197	[	)isabled	Left	2014-10-06 18:06	:02
7 Pethread cache	size		Config Numeric	15	show glob	al variables like 'thread_th al variables like 'thread_c;	ache size	3	0_9202	E	nabled	Left	2014-10-06 18:08	28
										_				
						[	[Select Action	on]					•	Go

- 4. First, we will define the *mysql\_version* collection object. This collection object monitors the MySQL configuration variable *version*. This configuration variable contains the version number and version name of the MySQL software.
- 5. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Object Name. Enter MySQL version.
  - SQL Query. Enter the following:

show global variables like 'version'

- This query searches an internal table that stores configuration information about the MySQL database (show global variables).
- The query retrieves the value of the status variable "version" (like 'version').
- The variable "version" contains the version number and version name of the MySQL server.
- Class Type. Select 10 Config Character. The returned value contains both numbers and letters.
- Group Number. Select Group 1 and Standard. In the Configuration Report page, this collection object will appear in table 1.
- Asset/Form Link. Leave these fields blank.
- Inventory Link. Select Disabled.

- **Change Alerting**. Select *Disabled*. SL1 will not trigger an event if the value of this collection object changes. Notice that we will enable this option for all other collection objects in this Dynamic Application. SL1 will then automatically generate events if the value of these collection objects change.
- **Table Alignment**. Select *Left*. This specifies that column-values will be left justified and will not be translated from hexadecimal unicode.
- **Trended Column**. Enter Value. The query for this collection object returns two columns: Variable\_ name, which contains the name of the variable (version) and Value, which contains the value of the variable. We are interested only in the value in the Value column and want that value to appear in the **Configuration Report** page.
- **Description**. Leave blank.
- Formula. Leave blank.
- 6. Select the [Save] button to save the new collection object.
- 7. For the remaining collection objects, enter the following and select the **[Save]** button for each collection object. If a field is not specified in this table, accept its default value.

Objec <del>t</del> Name	SQL Query	Class Type	Group Number	Change Alerting	Trended Column
auto_ commit	show global variables like 'autocommit'	[15] Config Numeric	2	Enabled	Value
max_ connections	show global variables like 'max_connections'	[15] Config Numeric	2	Enabled	Value
key_cache_ size	show global variables like 'key_buffer_size'	[15] Config Numeric	3	Enabled	Value
thread_ cache_size	show global variables like 'thread_cache_size'	[15] Config Numeric	3	Enabled	Value
query_ cache_size	show global variables like 'query_thread_size'	[15] Config Numeric	3	Enabled	Value

#### Creating a Credential for the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application

If you want to align the **MySQL:DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application with SL1's MySQL database, you must create a database credential that allows access to SL1's MySQL database.

For details on creating a credential for SL1's MySQL database, see the previous section.

#### Aligning the Dynamic Application with a Device

For our example, we aligned the *MySQL:DBConfiguration* Dynamic Application with the Database Server.

There are three ways to align the *MySQL:DBConfiguration* Dynamic Application with a Device:

- During initial discovery or nightly auto-discovery. Because the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application includes a discovery object, SL1 can automatically align this Dynamic Application with devices during discovery. For details on discovery, see the manual Discovery and Credentials.
- Manual discovery for the Dynamic Application. Because the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application includes a discovery object, SL1 can automatically align this Dynamic Application with devices. From the Dynamic Applications Manager page, you can manually execute discovery for all devices, but only for the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application. For details on how to perform this type of discovery, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.
- Manually associate the Dynamic Application with an existing device. For details on how to perform this type of discovery, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

This section will walk you through the steps to manually align the **MySQL:DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application with the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance.

To manually align the Dynamic Application to the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance:

- 1. Go the **Appliance Manager** page (System > Settings > Appliances). Determine the device name of the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance.
- 2. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 3. Find the device where the database resides (either the Database Server or the All-In-One Appliance). Select the device's wrench icon (*P*).
- 4. The Device Properties page appears. Select the [Collections] tab.
- 5. In the **Dynamic Application Collections** page, select the **[Action]** menu and select Add Dynamic Application.
- 6. The **Dynamic Application Alignment** page appears. Select MySQL:DBConfiguration in the **Dynamic Applications** pane, and select EM7 DB in the **Credentials** pane.



- 7. Select the **[Save]** button to add the Dynamic Application to the device.
- 8. At the next polling period, SL1 should start collecting the data specified in the **MySQL:DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application from the device where SL1's database resides.

# Viewing the Configuration Report for the Dynamic Application

For our example, we aligned the **MySQL:DBConfiguration** Dynamic Application with the Database Server on our device em7 ao.

SL1 automatically creates a Configuration Report on each device that is aligned with the Dynamic Application. The Configuration Report displays the latest data collected from the device by the Dynamic Application.

NOTE: For more details on the Configuration Report page and a description of the actions you can perform from the Configuration Report page, see the manual Monitoring Device Infrastructure Health.

To view the Configuration Report for the Dynamic Application:

- 1. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 2. Find the device that you aligned with the Dynamic Application. (In our example, this device is **em7\_ao**). Select its bar-graph icon (**dd**).
- 3. Select the [Configs] tab. The Configuration Report page appears.
- 4. In the NavBar, find the entry for the MySQL:DBConfiguration Dynamic Application and expand it.
- 5. The **Configuration Report** page displays the following:

Close	Summary	Performance	T <u>o</u> pology	<u>C</u> onfigs	Journals	Interfaces		
Logs	Events	<u>T</u> ickets	Software	Processes	Services	TCP Ports	Organization	
Device Name	den1paju01cma01.si	lo.local		Managed Type	Physical Device			
IP Address / ID	10.20.7.4   248			Category	Servers			
Class	Microsoft			Sub-Class	Windows Serve	r 2008 R2		
Organization	System			Uptime Collection Time	28 days, 00:37:5	5-00		Windows 2008
Collection Mode	Hardware: Intel64 Fa	mily 6 Model 45 Stennin		E - So Group / Collector	2014-10-06 18.1	5.00 ch AIO		
Device Hostname	naraware. Incovera	inny o model 45 Steppin		Cloup / Collector	000110000_140			den1paju01cma01.silo.
					_			
Host Resource:	CPU Config	Configuration Repo	ort   MySQL:DBConfi	guration			Actions	Reset Guide
Host Resource:	Memory Config	Snap-Shot Date [	2014-10-06 18:16:0	00]				Snap-Shots
Host Resource:	Software	Collection Grou	p [1]					
Support: File St	retern				MySQL	_version		
Support. The Sy	atom							
		Collection Grou	p [2] auto cor	mmit			max connections	
							-	
		Collection Grou	p [3]					
			key_cache_size		query_cache	thread_c	cache_size	
	Find							

6. Notice how the values are stored in tables as we specified in the **Group** field for each collection object. That is, mysql\_version is displayed in the first table, auto\_commit and max\_connections are displayed in the second table, and key\_cache\_size, query\_cache\_size, and thread\_cache\_size are displayed in the third table.

## Example



## Example of a Dynamic Application with an Identity-Based Relationship

#### Overview

In this example, we will describe how to build a pair of Dynamic Applications that create relationships between Sciencelogic Database Servers and the Data Collectors and Message Collectors in the same system.

Use the following menu options to navigate the SL1 user interface:

- To view a pop-out list of menu options, click the menu icon ( $\equiv$ ).

This chapter covers the following topics:

Building Dynamic Applications with an Identity-Based Relationship	.49
Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application	.49
Defining the Collection Objects	.51
Creating the Dynamic Application that Creates the Relationship	. 53
Aligning the Dynamic Applications	. 54
Viewing Dynamic Application Relationships	. 55

#### Building Dynamic Applications with an Identity-Based Relationship

In this example, we will describe how to build a pair of Dynamic Applications that create relationships between Sciencelogic Database Servers and the Data Collectors and Message Collectors in the same system.

In this example, the data used to build the relationships is in the *master.system\_settings\_licenses* database table. This table contains information about SL1 Appliances, including the appliance type, name, IP address, etc. On a Database Server, this table contains a row for each appliance in the system. On a Data Collector or Message Collector, this table contains a row for only that Data Collector or Message Collector.

The following database fields are used in this example:

- *id*. The automatically assigned ID number for the appliance. This will be combined with the host name of the appliance to create a unique identifier for the relationships.
- **name**. The host name of the appliance configured in the System > Settings > Appliances page. This will be combined with the id of the appliance to create a unique identifier for the relationships.
- *function*. The type of appliance. The appliance types are stored as integer values. This field contains 5 for Data Collectors and 6 for Message Collectors.

The following database query is used in this example:

```
SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name) as uid,
CASE
WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector"
WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collector"
END as func
FROM master.system_settings_licenses
WHERE function IN (5,6);
```

This query returns two values:

- **uid**. A string concatenation of the id and name fields. This will be used as the unique identifier for the relationships. This example assumes that this combination of fields is unique for all appliances in all SL1 systems.
- func. A string representation of the appliance type. This will be used as the namespace for the relationships.

The query returns rows only for Data Collectors and Message Collectors.

#### Defining the Basic Properties for the Dynamic Application

To create the Dynamic Application that creates the identity, which will be aligned to Data Collectors and Message Collectors, perform the following steps:

NOTE: For details on each field and its possible options, see the manual **Dynamic Application Development**.

- 1. Go to the **Dynamic Applications Manager** page (System > Settings > Appliances).
- 2. Select the [Actions] button, and then select Create New Dynamic Application. The Dynamic Applications Create New Application page appears.

ScienceLogic Collector IDentify	Version Number	[Default]	Disable Rollup of Data
Application Type		Context	
Database Configuration [9]	Operational State	•	Component Mapping
Caching	[Enabled] 💟 😯	Null Row Option	
Device Dashboard	Poll Frequency	Null Column Ontion	
[None]	Every 1 Minute 🔽 😯	values	Save
lease Notes & Change Log			
lease Notes & Change Log		~ A 14 II 0 8 8 0 II = 0	9
lease Notes & Change Log		~ M () II 0 8 8 0 II = 0	9 4
elease Notes & Change Log	ta t	∝ # \;	9
lease Notes & Change Log	B B B B S V V	∝ # \;	9
lease Notes & Change Log	B B B B S V V	A 4 4 ■ 0 € € 0 □ = 0	3
iease Notes & Change Log			3
lease Notes & Change Log			3
lease Notes & Change Log	■ ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●	A 44 10 0 € 6 0 □ = 0	9

- 3. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Application Name. Enter "ScienceLogic Collector Identity"
  - Application Type. Select Database Configuration.
  - Poll Frequency. To see data as quickly as possible, select Every 1 Minute in this field.
- 4. This example does not have specific requirements for the other settings defined in this page. You can leave the remaining fields set to the default values. Select the **[Save]** button to save the Dynamic Application.

### Defining the Collection Objects

To create the collection objects for the Dynamic Application that creates the identity:

NOTE: For more details on collection objects, see the manual Dynamic Application Development.

1. Select the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page appears.

Close	<u>P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollec	tions <u>T</u> hresholds		Alerts	Subscribers				
Dynamic Applications	[1279]   Collection Objects					Guide Reset			
Object Name	ID					Description			
SQL Query	SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Da WHEN function=6 THEN "Me END as func FROM mafter.system setti WHERE function IN (5,6);	: CHAR), name) as <u>uid</u> , sta Collector" ssage Collector" n <u>gs licenses</u>	<b>^ &gt;</b>			^ •			
Class Type	[10] Config Character		~						
String Type	[Standard]	]				Formula			
Group / Usage Type	Group 1	Group Index	~			^			
Asset / Form Link	[None]	[None]	~						
Inventory Link	[Disabled]					~			
Change Alerting	[Disabled]		~						
Table Alignment	[Left]								
Trended Column	uid	]							
Hide Object									
				Save		Disable Object Maintenance			
	There are no collection objects for this application.								

- 2. Supply values in the following fields to create the collection object for the *relationship identifier*:
  - Object Name. Enter ID.
  - SQL Query. Enter the database query for this example.
  - **Group**. The namespace and identifier collection objects must be in the same group. Select Group 1 in this field.
  - Usage Type. This collection object will collect the uid values from the database query, which are the identifiers for the relationships. Select *Group Index* in this field.

- **Trended Column**. This collection object will collect the uid values from the database query. Enter "uid" in this field.
- 3. Select the **[Save]** button to save the new collection object.
- 4. Select the [Reset] button to clear the form fields.

Close	<u>P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollections <u>T</u> hresholds <u>A</u>	lerts Subscribers
Dynamic Applications	[1279]   Collection Objects	Guide Reset
Object Name	Appliance Type	Description
SQL Query	SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name) as uid, CASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector" WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collector" END as func FROM master.system_settings_licenses WHERE function IN (5,6);	
Class Type	[10] Config Character	
String Type	[Standard]	Formula
Group / Usage Type	Group 1 V Identity Namespace V	^
Asset / Form Link	[None] [None]	
Inventory Link	[Disabled]	×
Change Alerting	[Disabled]	
Table Alignment	[Left]	
Hide Object	tunc ×	
		Save Disable Object Maintenance
Collection Object R Object Name 1. JO Conf	egistry Class Class Type ID g Character 10 SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name) as uid, C	SQL Query ASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector" WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collector" END as fur
<		[Select Action] Go

- 5. Supply values in the following fields to create the collection object for the *relationship namespace*:
  - Object Name. Enter Appliance Type.
  - SQL Query. Enter the database query for this example.
  - **Group**. The namespace and identifier collection objects must be in the same group. Select Group 1 in this field.
  - **Usage Type**. This collection object will collect the appliance function values from the database query, which are the namespaces for the relationships. Select *Identity Namespace* in this field.
  - **Trended Column**. This collection object will collect the appliance function values from the database query. Enter "func" in this field.
- 6. Select the [Save] button to save the new collection object.

# Creating the Dynamic Application that Creates the Relationship

Both Dynamic Applications in this example collect the same data with only minor configuration differences. Therefore, to create the Dynamic Application that creates the relationship, which will be aligned to Database Servers, you can create a copy of the ScienceLogic Collector Information Dynamic Application as the starting point. To create the Dynamic Application that creates the relationship, perform the following steps:

- 1. Go to the Dynamic Applications Manager page (System > Settings > Appliances).
- 2. Select the wrench icon (🎤) for the "ScienceLogic Collector Identity" Dynamic Application.

Close <u>Properties</u> <u>C</u> ollections	<u>T</u> hresholds <u>A</u> lert	s Subscribers	
Dynamic Applications [1279]   Application Successfully Update	d   Properties Editor		Guide Reset
Application Name ScienceLogic Collector Information Application Type [Database Configuration] Device Dashboard None	Version Number [Version 1.0] V V Operational State [Enabled] V V Poll Frequency [Fverv 1 Minute] V V	Abandon Collection [Default] Context Null Row Option [ values] Null Column Option	Disable Rollup of Data Save Save As
Description		[[- values]	
Release Notes & Change Log		A % ■ Ø ♣ ♣ Ø □ ₩ €	

- 3. Supply values in the following fields:
  - Application Name. Enter "ScienceLogic Collector Information"
- 4. Select the [Save As] button to save the new Dynamic Application.
- 5. Select the [Collections] tab. The Dynamic Applications | Collections Objects page appears.

Close	<u>P</u> roperties <u>C</u> ollections <u>T</u> hresholds <u>A</u>	lerts Subscribers
Dynamic Applications	[1280]   Collection Objects	Guide Reset
Object Name	Appliance Type	Description
SQL Query	SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name) as uid, CASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector" WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collector" END as func FROM master.system_settings_licenses WHERE function IN (5,6);	
Class Type	[10 Config Character]	
String Type	[Standard]	Formula
Group / Usage Type	[Group 1] Relationship Namespace	<b>^</b>
Asset / Form Link	[None] V [None] V	
Inventory Link	[Disabled]	× .
Change Alerting	[Disabled]	
Table Alignment	[Left]	
Trended Column	func	
Hide Object		
	Save	Save As Disable Object Maintenance
Collection Object R Object Name 1. PAppliance Typ 2. Plu	egistry Class Class Type ID Config Character 10 SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name) Config Character 10 SELECT CONCAT(CAST(id AS CHAR), name)	SQL Query ) as uid, CASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector" WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collect as uid, CASE WHEN function=5 THEN "Data Collector" WHEN function=6 THEN "Message Collector" E
<└───		[Select Action]

- 6. The difference between the collection objects in the identity-defining Dynamic Application (the previous Dynamic Application) and the relationship-defining Dynamic Application (this Dynamic Application) is the **Usage Type** setting for the namespace collection object. Select the wrench icon () for the Appliance Type object.
- 7. In the **Usage Type** drop-down list, select Relationship Namespace.
- 8. Select the **[Save]** button to save the collection object.

#### Aligning the Dynamic Applications

To align the example Dynamic Applications:

- 1. Discover the Database Server, Data Collectors, and Message Collectors in a SL1 system.
- 2. Additionally, you must add a firewall rule to the monitored Data Collectors and Message Collectors to allow connections on port 7707 from the All-In-One Appliance or Data Collector that is performing collection.
- 3. Align the **ScienceLogic Collector Information** Dynamic Application with the Database Server and use the default Central Database credential. To do this:
- 4. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).

- 5. Find the Database Server. Select its wrench icon ( $\mathscr{P}$ ).
- 6. Select the **[Collections]** tab.
- 7. From the [Actions] menu, select Add Dynamic Application.
- 8. In the **Dynamic Application Alignment** modal page, select the following:
  - Dynamic Applications. Select ScienceLogic Collector Information.
  - **Credentials**. Select EM7 Central Database. If the monitored Database Server does not use the default username and password, you must edit the credential to use the new username and password.
- 9. Align the **ScienceLogic Collector Identity** Dynamic Application with the Data Collectors and Message Collectors and use the default Collector Database credential. To do this:
- 10. Go to the **Device Manager** page (Registry > Devices > Device Manager).
- 11. Find the Data Collector. Select its wrench icon (*P*).
- 12. Select the [Collections] tab.
- 13. From the [Actions] menu, select Add Dynamic Application.
- 14. In the **Dynamic Application Alignment** modal page, select the following:
  - Dynamic Applications. Select ScienceLogic Collector Identity.
  - **Credentials**. Select EM7 Central Database. If the monitored Database Server does not use the default username and password, you must edit the credential to use the new username and password.
- 15. Repeat the bulleted steps for each Data Collector and Message Collector.

#### Viewing Dynamic Application Relationships

If the example Dynamic Applications are configured correctly and collection is successful, the relationships are displayed in the following places:

• In the **[Topology]** tab in the **Device Reports** panel for the Database Server, Data Collectors, and Message Collectors:



• In the **Device Relationships** page (Registry > Networks > Device Relationships):

	ua fal								Irace	Reset Guide
Child •	Child IP	Child Interface *	Child Phys Addr	Child If Manufacturer	Parent *	Parent Interface	Parent If Alias	Parent Phys Addr	Parent If Manufacturer	Type *
1 man7 73cut latest					mam7 73db blast					Component Relationship
2 mem7 73cu2 latest					em7 73db latest		-			Component Relationship
3 mem7 an 89					Pen7 db		-			Component Relationship
4. em7 db					⇔em7 cu 94					Component Relationship
5. 🖙 em7 db			-		⇔em7 db		-			Component Relationship
6. Test-VII-1		-			10.100.100.40		-			Component Mapping
7. Test-VM-2					10.100.100.40					Component Mapping
<ol> <li>WIN-2012-21.DOCS.LOCAL</li> </ol>			-		WIN-2012-23.DOCS.LOCAL	-				Component Relationship
9. WIN-2012-22.DOCS.LOCAL		- 🧶	-		WIN-2012-23.DOCS.LOCAL		-			Component Relationship

 In pages under the [Views] tab that display relationships between devices. For example, the Organizational Map page (Views > Device Maps > Organizational):



#### © 2003 - 2020, ScienceLogic, Inc.

#### All rights reserved.

#### LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND GENERAL DISCLAIMER

ALL INFORMATION AVAILABLE IN THIS GUIDE IS PROVIDED "AS IS," WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. SCIENCELOGIC <sup>™</sup> AND ITS SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT.

Although ScienceLogic<sup>™</sup> has attempted to provide accurate information on this Site, information on this Site may contain inadvertent technical inaccuracies or typographical errors, and ScienceLogic<sup>™</sup> assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the information. Information may be changed or updated without notice. ScienceLogic<sup>™</sup> may also make improvements and / or changes in the products or services described in this Site at any time without notice.

#### Copyrights and Trademarks

ScienceLogic, the ScienceLogic logo, and EM7 are trademarks of ScienceLogic, Inc. in the United States, other countries, or both.

Below is a list of trademarks and service marks that should be credited to ScienceLogic, Inc. The ® and ™ symbols reflect the trademark registration status in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and may not be appropriate for materials to be distributed outside the United States.

- ScienceLogic<sup>™</sup>
- EM7<sup>™</sup> and em7<sup>™</sup>
- Simplify IT™
- Dynamic Application™
- Relational Infrastructure Management<sup>™</sup>

The absence of a product or service name, slogan or logo from this list does not constitute a waiver of ScienceLogic's trademark or other intellectual property rights concerning that name, slogan, or logo.

Please note that laws concerning use of trademarks or product names vary by country. Always consult a local attorney for additional guidance.

#### Other

If any provision of this agreement shall be unlawful, void, or for any reason unenforceable, then that provision shall be deemed severable from this agreement and shall not affect the validity and enforceability of any remaining provisions. This is the entire agreement between the parties relating to the matters contained herein.

In the U.S. and other jurisdictions, trademark owners have a duty to police the use of their marks. Therefore, if you become aware of any improper use of ScienceLogic Trademarks, including infringement or counterfeiting by third parties, report them to Science Logic's legal department immediately. Report as much detail as possible about the misuse, including the name of the party, contact information, and copies or photographs of the potential misuse to: legal@sciencelogic.com



800-SCI-LOGIC (1-800-724-5644)

International: +1-703-354-1010